ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 9, 2010
3:35 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Donald d son, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Al bert Kookesh

Senat or Li nda Menard

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 46
Urging Congressional support for the reauthorization of the
Denal i Conmi ssi on.

- MOVED HIR 46 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 29

Requesting the Al aska Congressional delegation to introduce and
seek passage of an anendnent to the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery
Conservation and Managenent Act to create four new voting seats
on the North Pacific Fishery Managenent Council to be filled by
appoi ntment of nenbers of federally recognized tribes or Al aska
Native organizations who are not enployed by a community
devel opment quota program or the pollock industry.

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 46
SHORT TI TLE: SUPPORTI NG DENALI COVMM SSI ON
SPONSOR(s): COMMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS

02/ 19/ 10 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 10 (H) CRA

02/ 23/ 10 (H) CRA RPT 4DP

02/ 23/ 10 (H) DP: Cl SSNA, HARRI'S, MUNOZ, HERRON

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- March 9, 2010



02/ 23/ 10 (H CRA AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124

02/ 23/ 10 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 23/ 10 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 24/ 10 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 24/ 10 (H) VERSI ON:  HIR 46

02/ 26/ 10 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 26/ 10 (S) CRA

03/ 09/ 10 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SJR 29
SHORT TI TLE: TRI BAL SEATS ON N. PAC. FI SHERI ES COUNCI L
SPONSCR(s): COMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS

02/ 26/ 10 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 26/ 10 (S) CRA, RES
03/ 09/ 10 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

ROB EARL

Staff to Representative Herron

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HIR 46 for the sponsor.

BOB PAWLOABKI, Legi sl ative Liaison
Denal i Commi ssi on

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HIR 46.

JOEL NI EMEYER, Federal Co-chair
Denali Conmi ssion

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HIR 46.

GEORGE PUTLI COF

G een Peace

Pal mer, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SJR 29.

JULI E RAYMOND- YAKOUBI AN, Ant hr opol ogi st
Nat ural Resources Division

Kawer ak | nc.

Nonme, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SJR 29.

ART | VANHOFF

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- March 9, 2010



Sout hern Norton Sound Fish and Ganme Advisory Conmittee (SNSAC)
and Native Village of Unal akl eet (NVU)

Unal akl eet, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SJR 29.

KAREN G LLES, Executive Director

Bering Sea Fisherman's Associ ati on (BSFA)
Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SJR 29.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:35: 09 PM

CHAIR DONALD OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:35 p.m Present
at the call to order were Senators French, Thomas, Menard,
Kookesh and d son.

HIR 46- SUPPORTI NG DENALI COWM SSI ON

3:36: 10 PM
CHAI R OLSON announced the first order of business to cone before
the commttee was HIR 46.

ROB EARL, staff to Representative Herron, sponsor of HIR 46,
said the resolution encourages Congress to reauthorize the
Denali Comm ssion wth adequate funding. HIR 46 al so encourages
the President and his admnistration to continue the Denali
Conmi ssion as an authorized independent federal agency. The
Denali Comm ssion is one of seven federal regional comm ssions
serving the challenges of rural Anerica. It has a proven record
of service for 10 years but is the only regional conm ssion not
presently authorized. Its authorization expired Cctober 1, 2009.
HIR 46 will act as a clear statenent fromthe Al aska Legislature
to Congress to reauthorize the Denali Conmm ssion, enabling the
Al askan delegation to pursue the necessary funding for the
conmi ssion to invest in rural Al aska.

CHAIR OLSON asked how the Denali Conm ssion has continued to
oper at e, and if it has been as effective, since its
aut hori zation expired on Cctober 1, 20009.

MR. EARL replied that he would defer the question to M. Bob
Pawl owski .

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- March 9, 2010



CHAIR COLSON asked if any problens are foreseeable wth
reaut hori zation of the Denali Comm ssion.

MR. EARL replied that he has heard runors that reauthorization
is likely.

CHAI R OLSON asked if HIR 46 has any opposition.
MR. EARL answered no, not as far as he knows.

BOB PAW.ONSBKI, Legislative Liaison, Denali Conmm ssion, said the
commission is functioning under the appropriations process,
allowing it to function as an authorized federal agency for
di spersing funds and conducting prograns.

CHAI R OLSON asked if the comm ssion has the sane ability to get
the appropriations it has gotten in the past.

3:39:12 PM
MR. PAW.OANSKI replied that the comm ssion has not been affected
yet but will be challenged in the future. Congress can nove the

appropriate appropriations to an authorized agency nore easily.
An agency w thout authorization is only capable of functioning
upon an appropri ation.

CHAI R OLSON asked why the Denali Conm ssion has been singled out
wi t hout perpetual reauthorization.

MR. PAWOMNSKI said the comm ssion was not included in the bill
which included five authorizations. The decision for it not to
be brought up for reauthorization remains unclear.

SENATOR THOVAS noted that HIR 16 indicates a base appropriation
of $11,965,000 and asked if that had been the sanme ampunt in
recent years.

MR. PAW.OWBKI replied that the Oobanma adm nistration established
that amobunt as the base appropriation for the Denali Comm ssion
in 2010 budget and has recommended that anount for the 2011
budget. Previously the base programs were |ess than $10 mllion.

SENATOR THOVAS commented that the increased anount is good.

MR. PAW.OABKI said the increase recognizes the inportance of
| evel funding in a base appropriation.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- March 9, 2010



SENATOR THOVAS asked if there is state support for the Denali
Conmi ssi on.

VR. PAW.OAMSKI replied that the state has not given an
appropriation to the Denali Comm ssion recently. He pointed out
that Karen Rehfeld [Director, Ofice of Mnagenent Budget (QOVB),
Ofice of the Governor] is the state co-chair and plays a key
role wth staff and projects that the Denali Conm ssion
conpl enent s.

3:43: 04 PM

JOEL NI EMEYER, Federal Co-chair, Denali Comm ssion, said staff
for the House Transportation and Infrastructure Comrttee have
relayed that Congressman Overstar, chair of the commttee, is
inclined to support reauthorization of the Denali Comn ssion.
HIR 46 from the Alaska Legislature would be helpful for
Congressman Young as he works through the process.

CHAI R OLSON asked if M. N eneyer anticipated any probl ens.

MR. NI EMEYER replied no; he has not seen anything to suggest the
House Transportation and Infrastructure commttee was opposed to
reaut hori zati on.

3:45: 35 PM
SENATOR THOVAS comment ed that the annual productions he has seen
shoul d acconpany HIR 46.

MR. NI EMEYER said M. Pawl owski wi Il be working on that.

3:46: 24 PM

SENATOR THOMAS noved to report HIR 46 from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
bei ng no objection, the notion carried.

3:46:46 PM
CHAI R OLSON call ed an at ease from3:46p.m to 3:48 p.m

SIJR 29- TRI BAL SEATS ON N. PAC. FI SHERI ES COUNCI L

3:48: 36 PM
CHAI R OLSON announced the next order of business to cone before
the commttee was SIJR 29, a conmittee bill, with no fiscal note.

TIM BENI NTENDI, staff to Senator O son, read from the foll ow ng
st at enent :

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- March 9, 2010



SJR 29 would ask Al aska's Congressional delegation to

open the Magnuson-Stevens Act to anendnent, for

t he

pur pose of expanding the nunber of voting seats on the
North Pacific Fisheries Managenent Council [(NPFMC)].

This resolution seeks four new voting seats to be
filled with appointees who are nenbers of federally-
recognized tribes in Al aska, and/or Al aska Native
Organi zations (ANO s). These new seats would be filled
by individuals who are not enployed by a comunity
devel opment quota program [(CDQ s)], or the pollock

i ndustry.

Many in the Alaska Native fishing constituency in

West er n and Nor t hwest ern Al aska, and t hose
their

supportive resource developnent groups, feel

in

voices and their concerns are not being heard on the

NPFMC. They feel f our new voting seats
accommodat e t hat voi ce.

Tr oubl es in t he Arctic Yukon- Kuskokw m

fisheries, notably the loss of Kking salnon on

Wil |

( AYK)

t he

Lower Yukon River, and unresolved by-catch issues in
the Bering Sea, have forced this constituency to raise
its profile in a forum where it is felt that renedial
action can be achieved. Four new voting seats on the

NPFMC wi || address their concerns.

SJR 29 is supported by the Norton Sound Economc

Devel opnment Council, and Kawarek, |nc.

3:50: 56 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked how many nmenbers are on the NPFMC.

MR. BEN TENDI answered either 11 or 13 menbers.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how peopl e get appointed to the council.

MR. BENI TENDI replied that the governor appoints four

seats and

t he conm ssioner of Alaska Departnment of Fish and Gane (ADF&G

hol ds a seat.
SENATOR FRENCH asked who appoi nts the other seats.

MR. BENI TENDI replied the Secretary of Commerce does.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- March 9, 2010



SENATOR FRENCH clarified that a federal official and our
governor appoint to the council.

MR. BENI TENDI replied yes.

SENATOR MENARD asked if this legislation has been attenpted in
t he past out of concern that not enough Native people are on the
fishery boards.

MR. BENI TENDI replied that he does not know of an attenpt just
like SIJR 29. He said last year a commttee dealing with native
i ssues was appointed but the constituency wants full nenbership
on the NPFMC itsel f.

SENATOR MENARD clarified that under SJR 29 the NPFMC woul d have
15 nenbers, four of which would have to be from the Native
comunity.

MR. BENI TENDI responded yes, that woul d be the case.
SENATOR THOVAS asked if all nenmbers of NPFMC are from Al aska.

3:53:27 PM
MR. BENITENDI replied no, sone are federal officials and sone
are from Washi ngton, Oregon and California.

SENATOR THOVAS asked about the wording on page 2, lines 22-23:
"be filled by appointnent of nenbers of federally recognized
tribes or Alaska Native organizations". He asked if that wording
specified only Al askan federally recognized tribes and ANO s or
if further nenbership from Wshington, Oegon and California
woul d be al | owed.

MR. BENI TENDI replied that the wording should say "federally
recogni zed tribes in Al aska" because SIJR 29 is intended to be an
Al aska specific resol ution.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked who woul d appoi nt the four new menbers.

MR. BENITENDI replied that he does not know but thinks the
governor woul d appoint the four nenbers.

SENATOR KOOKESH said he thinks the federal Departnent of
Commerce would make the appointnents because they are federally
recogni zed tribes. He asked i f any Ameri can | ndi an
representatives fromthe Lower 48 are currently on the NPFMC.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- March 9, 2010



MR. BENI TENDI replied that he does not know.

3:56: 07 PM
CHAI R OLSON said he wanted the record to reflect a special guest
in the room Vic Fi sher, one  of the constitutional

conventi oneers.
CHAI R OLSON asked if there is any opposition to SIJR 29.

MR. BENITENDI replied that he has not heard of any opposition
t hough he suspects it exists.

CHAI R OLSON asked what the current menbers of the NPFMC think of
SJR 29.

MR. BENI TENDI said he does not know but suspects the NPFMC woul d
not want to raise the nenber nunber. Senators Mirkowski and
Begi ch discussed SIJIR 29 with the constituents who raised it and
were concerned that reopening the Mgnuson-Stevens Act would
invite opportunities to nake other changes. SIJR 29 petitions
Al aska's del egation to change their mnds and open the Magnhuson-
Stevens Act to anendnent to the NPFMC.

3:58: 09 PM

GECRCE PUTLI COF, representing Geen Peace and a resident of
Pal mer, said the NPFMC has 11 voting nenbers and 4 non-voting
menbers representing Al aska, Washington and Oregon. A different
council represents California under the Magnuson-Stevens Act. He
said 3 nmenbers of the 11 voting nmenbers of the council are from
the fishing industry - processors, catcher-processors or fishing
conpani es. Three other nenbers are consultants who do not |ist
their clients but are likely fishing consultants. Therefore, 6
of the 11 voting nmenbers represent commercial fishing interests.

4:01:59 PM

The NPFMC hel ps set the quotas for halibut and king sal non by-
catch in @lf of Al aska and Bering Sea. Last w nter the NPFMC
set the king salnon by-catch quota for the pollock industry up
to 60,000. The pollock industry had a by-catch several years ago
of al nost 700, 000 sal non. These salnon are usually discarded or
in sone cases given to non-profits or food banks.

The NPFMC has an advisory panel made up of 20 individuals.
El even of these individuals are froma fishing interest. Finding
anyone on the advisory panel who represents environnental
i ssues, conservation concerns or the people of Wstern Alaska is
difficult. People from Western Alaska are often allowed only

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- March 9, 2010



three mnutes to testify on an issue after waiting for four or
si x days.

4:05:11 PM
The NPFMC focuses primarily on the Gulf of Alaska and the Bering
Sea and will potentially focus on Chukchi and the Arctic Sea in

the near future. The people nost inpacted by NPFMC s decisions
have no representation. Trying to provide for famlies through
subsi stence hunting and gathering is becomng nore difficult and
expensive. He said he hinself, and G een Peace, support SIJR 29
as a way to resolve the discrepancy between the industry and the
peopl e i npacted by the decisions that the NPFMC nmakes.

DAVI D OTNESS, representing hinself, Cordova, said he has |ived
and wor ked throughout the state mainly in commercial fishing and
is now engaged in the merchant mariner's trade. He said he was
on the former governor's ADF&G transition team Last year, the
ADF&G advocated to increase the king salnon by-catch by 8,000
over what was allowed by NPFMC. This action, on a stressed
fishery, would automatically exclude wupriver native villages
fromtheir traditional foods.

4:09:58 PM

The people from these villages are underrepresented, have no
econom ¢ horsepower and are excluded from CDQs. Economc
interests are stacked against people trying to carry on their
traditional way of life. Factory trollers have taken over and
pronote their interest to the exclusion of the people upriver.
SJR 29 gives people fromfishing villages a voi ce.

CHAIR OLSON asked if M. Qness is a nmenber of a federally
recogni zed tri be or an ANQ

MR OINESS replied no, he 1is of Norwegian descent from
Pet er sbur g.

CHAI R CLSON asked if M. Qness has ever been enployed by a CDQ
or the pollock industry.

MR. OTNESS replied never.

JULI E  RAYMOND- YAKQOUBI AN, Ant hr opol ogi st Nat ur al Resour ces
Di vision, Kawerak Inc., Nonme, said that Kawerak is the Al aska
Native non-profit for the Bering Strait region, representing 20
tribes. Kawerak strongly supports SJR 29. The concerns of
regional residents, tribes and tribal organizations nust be a
part of the decision-nmaking process on par with the commerci al

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -9- March 9, 2010



fishing industry. Tribally designated voting seats, filled by
representatives without ties to CDQ s, or other sectors of the
industrial fishing industry, are required for a fair and

bal anced council. Representation on NPFMC conmmttees or the
advisory panel is not sufficient; actual voting seats are
required.

4:14: 01 PM

Over the past two years, Kawerak has fully participated in the
NPFMC process by providing witten coments and testifying at
the neetings of the NPFMC, its conmttees and advisory panel.
Kawerak has facilitated the attendance of other regional triba
representatives as well.

M5. RAYMOND- YAKOUBI AN suggested one change to SJR 29: changing
the wording from "or the pollock industry" to "or other
i ndustrial commercial fishing interests", or sonething simlar,
on page 1, lines 5-6 and page 2, lines 23-24.

CHAIR OLSON asked Ms. Raynond-Yakoubian to send a witten
possi bl e amendnent for consideration.

ART | VANHOFF, Southern Norton Sound Fish and Game Advisory
Comm ttee (SNSAC) and Native Village of Unal akleet (NVU) said he
supported SJR 29. The Norton Sound salnon stocks have been
depl eted since 1998 and the Al aska Board of Fish identified the
stock as a stock of concern. The sane situation applies to the
Yukon and Kuskokw m drai nages. In 2007, the Bering Sea Al eutian
| sland Tal keet had a by-catch of 130,000 chinook which was
consi dered a debacle. The accunul ative by-catch between 2003 and
2007 was about 380,000 chinook that would have been destined for
river systems. In June of 2008, Southern Norton Sound attended
and testified at a NPFMC neeting in Kodiak; the absence of
tribes at the table was obvious. He noted that a trolling survey
will be conducted in the Northern Bering Sea. Mny, who depend
on the sal non, and other resources, are concerned.

4:18: 53 PM

MR. | VANHOFF said villages that depend on the resources need an
opportunity to sit at the table. Southern Norton Sound has 18
organi zations endorsing this effort, including the Al aska
Federation of Natives, the Alaska Inter-tribal Council and
Al aska Village Initiatives. Several CDQ groups have endorsed the
effort as well. Tribes are watching decisions being nade that
inmpact their way of life. The inplenentation of the Magnuson-
Stevens Act included a fundanental oversight: tribes were |eft

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 10- March 9, 2010



out of the whole process. Eight regional councils were devel oped
under the act and only one has a tribal representative.

SENATOR THOMAS asked if representatives of the nost affected
areas had attended the NPFMC neetings to express concerns.

MR. | VANHOFF said representatives have testified on nunerous
occasions. He reiterated that they attended the June 2008 NPFMC
meeting in Kodiak | ooking for a reduction in chinook by-catch.

SENATOR THOMAS asked if this was to no avail.

MR. | VANHOFF confirnmed that the effort was to no avail. The
states and the industry have one agenda. People with a different
agenda, of conservation and protection of resources, are not
repr esent ed.

4:22:04 PM

KAREN G LLES, Executive Director, Bering Sea Fisherman's
Association (BSFA), said the association serves 128 comunities
from the Arctic, Yukon-Kuskokwim and Bristol Bay regions. For
nearly 30 vyears, BSFA has balanced the comercial fishing
interest with the interests of its constituents and the need to
sustain fishery resources. BSFA's board of directors, nmade up of
commercial fisherman from coastal Al aska, agrees the NPFMC is
wei ghted toward the industry. BSFA s board supports the concept
of nore seats on the NPFMC to better represent Western Al askan
i ssues. The concept of additional seats started as a response to
the April 2009 NPFMC action on chinook by-catch which showed
that the NPFMC is ill-suited and inadequately designed to
address that issue and others. Wth Alaska holding only a slim
majority of the voting seats of the NPFMC, the needed votes on
issues of inportance to Alaska, particularly subsistence and
even sport fisheries, are difficult to obtain. The BSFA has
talked to Al aska's congressional delegates and SJR 29 woul d open
di al ogue further. BSFA supports SJR 29.

4:25: 34 PM
SENATOR THOVAS asked Ms. Glles' opinion on whether or not
Al aska is the gold standard of sustainability.

M5. G LLES said that statenent has been applied at both the
council level with federal managenent and at the state |evel.
The substantial anount of research |ooking at the health and
status of stocks, especially in the AYK regions, would not be
needed iif they were managed properly. ADF&G s in-season
managenent , whi |l e not ewort hy, does not gi ve them an

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -11- March 9, 2010



understanding of what is happening with the stocks. Stocks have
been suffering for a long time and the necessary attention has
only begun. State nmanagenent is not at a gold standard. At the
federal level, the eco-system based nanagenent approach is
al nost cutting edge but the application, in sone situations, is
not carried through due to other interests.

4:29:19 PM
CHAIR OLSON asked if BSFA nenbers all have limted entry
permts.

M5. G LLES said BSFA nenbership is based on residency and sone
have limted entry permts, but not all.

CHAI R OLSON asked if the CDQ s are in favor of SJR 29 seeing as
they are dependent on sone at-sea processors and financial
agr eenent s.

MS. G LLES said she does not know the answer but said CDQ s wal k
a fine |ine.

4:30: 41 PM
CHAI R OLSON cl osed public testinony.

SENATOR FRENCH said he supports the idea and is ready to nove
SJR 29.

SENATOR THOVAS said he wants to clarify who would appoint the
new nenbers and that the |anguage on page 2, lines 22-24 be
changed to specify that the appointnents should be from Al askan
federally recognized tribes and/or ANO s.

CHAIR OLSON said he wuld Ilike M. Raynond- Yakoubi an' s
suggestion as well and would Ilike to bring a commttee
substitute for SIJIR 29 back to committee in the next neeting.

SENATOR THOMAS al so suggested that information on the make-up of
the existing NPFMC be gathered in order to be passed on to the
next conmtt ee.

SENATOR MENARD said she thinks the Magnuson-Stevens act should
be | ooked at for this fundanental oversight and inbal ance.

CHAIR OLSON held SIR 29 in comittee.

4:33:20 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -12- March 9, 2010



CHAIR COLSON, seeing no further business to conme before the
commttee, adjourned the neeting at 4:33 p.m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 13- March 9, 2010



